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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.8.C.P.

Repnrt on the Audit of the Consotidated Finamcial Staternents

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P.
(the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (colleciively the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 3] December 2018, and the consclidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance wmith International Financial Reporting Standards (1IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described i the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Marters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in ouy audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate optnion on these matters. For each
key audit matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities descnibed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidased Financiul Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financiat statements. The

results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,

provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statement

Impairment of intangible assets

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of intangibie assets amounted to KD 1,060,877,
which mainly comprises lease rights from the Government and key money paid to acquire
operating Jeases which have indefinite useful lives. The carrying amounts of intangible assets
are contingent on future cash flows, and there is a risk if these cash flows do not meet the Group
expectations the assets will be impaired. The intangible assets amount have been allocated to
the cash-generating unit (CGU) expected to benefit from synergies. Given the significant
judgment involved in the annual impairment test and its potential impact on results, this 1s
considered a key audit matter.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TC THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continned)

Repost on the Audit of the Consolidated Financiai Statements (continned)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Impairment of intangible assets (continued)

The impairment reviews performed by the Group contained a number of significant judgements
and estimates including revenue growth, profit margins, terminal values and discount rate.
Changes in these assumptions might lead to a change in the carrying amounts of intangible
assets.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following;

r We involved our ynternal specialists to assist us fn challenging the valuation methodology
used and evaluating the appropnateness of key assumptions applied in the impairment
analysis, such as revenue growth, discount rate and terminal values;

t- We validated that the cash flow projections used in the valuation and whether these are
consistent with management’s approved business plans. We have also compared the
estimates of cash flow projections of previous periods with actual corresponding results, to
assess the reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts; and

>  We evaluated the adequacy of the Group's disclosures concerning intangible assets in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements, including disclosures of key assumptons,
Jjudgements and sensitivities.

Expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables amounted to KD J,333,122 million representing
1 7% of total assets.

Effective from | Sanuary 2018, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments' to measure ECL for trade receivables, which allows for lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Group
determines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using a provision matrix that is
based on historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment. Trade recetvables have been grouped based oo shared
credit risk characteristics and days past due.

Due to the significance of trade receivables and the complexity involved in the ECL calculation,
this was considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

L We assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the BCL calculation by
comnparing them with historical data adjusted for current rarket conditions and forwarsd-
looking information;

I Weinvolved our internal specialists to assess the appropriateness of the methodology used
by management in determining the ECL on trade receivables;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 7O THE SHARFHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.S8.C.P. {continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Finsncial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables (continued)

L We performed substantive procedures to test, on a sampie basis, the completeness and
accuracy of the information included in the debtors’ ageing report;

¢ Further, in order to evaluate the appropriateness of management judgements, we vetified on
a sample basis, the customer’s historical payment patterns and whether any post year-end
payments had been recerved up to the date of conipleting our andit procedures.; and

.~  We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures relating to the ECL,
managemerit’s assessment of the credit risk and their responses to such risks in Note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group's 2018 Annual Report

Management 15 responsible for the other imformation. Other information consists of the
information included in the Group’s 2018 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the rernaining
sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Ous opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
wnformation 5 matenally igconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to repost that fact. We have nothing to report ip this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance jfor the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management js respounsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the TFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, of has no realistic altemative but to do
50.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
FOTELS COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (coutinued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

DOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurarice, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticistn throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those nsks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material mysstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting frorr error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropnate in the circurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion On the effectiveness of the Group’s intermal control.

. Bvalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

t  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinior. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concer.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

1 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and pérforrsance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinioo.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KUWAIT
HOTELS COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report or the Audit of the Consolidsted Financizl Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audii of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to comrunicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the curtent year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation prectudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determipe that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, 1o our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and
the consolidaled financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in
accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all the information and explanations that
we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate
all information that is required by the Companies Law No. ] of 2016 as amended, and its executive
regulations as amended or by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, no violations of the Companies Law No. | of 2016 ,as amended, and jts executive
regulations, as amended, or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association have occurred during the year ended 3] December 2018 that might have had a
matenal effect oun the business of the Parent Company or on its financial position.

IEY,

BADER A. AL ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207-A

EY

AL AIBAN, AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

31 March 2019
Kuwait
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes

Revenue from contract with custoroers 5
Management fees
Rental tncome
Total revenue
Cost of sales 5
GROSS PROFIT
Other income 6
Administrative expenses
Sefling and distribution expenses
Finance costs
Share of regults of an associate
Write-off of intangible assets 10
Jmpairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets 11
Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories
Allowance for expected credit losses (2017: ippairment of trade

recejvable) 12
(LOSSYPROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX
Conmibution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences

(KFAS)
Zakai
Netiona) Labour Support Tax (NLST)
Income tax on overseas operalions
(LOSSYPROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests
BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO £QUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY 8

The auached notes 110 25 form pan of this consolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
KD KD
5,906,481 6,549,564
827,630 780,430
882,440 690,602
7,616,551 8,020,596
(6,193,051) (6,542,088)
1,423,560 1,478,508
69,937 139,305
(1,499,038)  (1.398,094)
(218,121) (120,151)
- (2)463)
4,785 (22,581)
(77,251} -
. (30,869)
(18,981) -
- (17,630)
(315,169) 26,020
- (234)
(4,173) -
(10,638) -
(34,249) (18,783)
(364,229) 7,003
(363,582) 6,930
(647) 73
(364,229) 7,003
(6.4) fls 0.} fils

6



Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and 1ts Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassifed ta profit or loss in
subsequent periods

Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subseguent periods:

Net loss on equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified to profit or toss fo
subsequent periods
Other comprehen'sive loss for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:

Equity bolders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

The attached notes | 10 25 form part of this consolidated financial statements.

2018 2007
XD KD
(364,229) 7,003

(2,230) (62,196)
(2,230) (62,196)
(43,000) -
(43,000)
(45,230 (62,196)
(409,459) (55,193)
(408,812) (55,266)
(647) 73
(409,459) (55,193)

3



Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018

ASSETS

Non-curvent assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Invesiment in 4n associate
[nvestment securities

Current assefs

Invenlories

Aczounts receivable and prepayments
Investment securitics

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILYITES
Equity

Share capitul

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Treasury sharcs

I‘ajr value reserve

l'oreign currency transiation reserve
Other reserve

(Accumulated losscs) / retained carnings

BEquity attributable to equity holders of the Pareat Company

Non-controlling inlerests
Totzl equity

Non-current liabilities
Employees™ end of service benefits

Current liabflities
Actounts payable and aceruals

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

o

Abhmad Yousef Al-Kandari
Chairman

Nores

12
i
13

14
15
15
16

The attached notes | Lo 23 form pant of this consolidated financial staterments.

2018 2017
KD KD
3,568,320 3,840,643
1,060,877 1.138,128
26,154 41,460
50,235 93.235
4,705,586 5,113,466
254,954 359,888
1,878,877 1,896,810
71,400 71,400
976,642 970,002
3,181,873 3,298,100
7,887,459 8.411,566
5,775,000 5,775,000
716,137 716,137
313,43J 313.43)
(223,952) (223,952)
(83,822) (40,822)
(383,457) (381,227)
(513,600) (513.600)
(602,443) 33.834
4,997,294 5,678,801
2575 (29.368)
4,999,869 5,649,433
790,738 878,052
2,096,852 1,884,081
2,096,852 1,884,081
2,887,590 2,762,133
7,887,459 8,411,566
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiares

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit for the year before tax
Adjusmments 1o reconcile (loss)/profit for the year 10 net cash flows:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of items of propersty and egquipment
Loss on write off of intangible assets
Provision for employees® end of service benefits
Allowance for expected credit losses (2017: impairment of accounts
receivable)
Provision for obsclete and slow moving inventories
Interest income
Finance costs
Impeirment Joss on svailable-for-sale financial assets
Share of resuls of an associate

Working capital adjustments:
Inventories
Acceounts receivable and prepayments
Accounts payable and accrvals

Cash fows from operations
Employees’ end of service benefits paid

Net eash flows from / (used in) operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipmem

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets
Interest income received

Net movement in non~-controlling interest

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance costs paid
Disvidends paid

Net ¢ash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Net foreign exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalenis at 1 January

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Non-cash transactions excluded from the statement of cash MNows
are as follows:

linpact on recogpition of EC). on accounts reccivable
Capital redemption in an associate

‘The anached notes | 1025 form part of this consolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
Notes KD KD
(335,169) 26,020
9 384,970 434,477
6 67,507 8,917
10 77,251 -
18 165,436 177,538
12 - 12,630
18,983 -
6 (4,004) (4,986)
- 2,468
1 - 30.869
(4,785) 22,581
390,189 715,514
85,953 113,157
(235,917) 781,161
163,711 (1,428,114)
403,936 181,718
18 (252,750) (256,642)
151,186 (74,924)
9 (233,359) (150,082)
53,205 16,708
- 57,000
4,004 4,986
32,590 -
(143,560) (71,388)
- (2,468)
- (249,828)
- (252,296)
7,626 (398,608)
(986) (11,295)
970,002 1,379,905
13 976,642 970,002
(272,695)
‘ 81848 -

10



Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1.3 CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company™) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Parent Company's Board of Directors on 31 March 2019.and the shareholders have the power
to amend these consolidated financial stalements at the annval general assembly meeting (AGM)..

The Parent Company is a public shareholding company incorporated and domiciled in Kuwait and whose shares are
publicly traded on Boursa Kuwait. The registered office is located at P. O. Box 833, Safat 13009, Kuwait.

The principal activities of the Parent Company is owning, operating and managing hotel, commercial and residential
properties; catering services; importing of consumer durables, machinery and equipment; and investment i similar
business in or outside Kuwait.

On 15 May 2018, the sharéholders at the AGM of the Parent Company approved the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 20)7. No dividends were declared.

Information on the Group's structure is provided below. Information oo otber related party relationships of the
Group is provided in Note 22.

1.2 GROUP INFORMATION
a) Subsidiartes

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include:

Country of % equity interest
Name Incorporation 2018 2077  Principal activities

Ruwait Catering Company K.S.C. (Closed)

("RCC) Kuwaji 99.54% 99.54%  Catering services
Catering services

Safat Carering Services Company K.S.C. (Closed) and manpower

(“SCC"™) Kuwait 99% 99% supply

Safr International Hotel Management Company Kingdom of

E.C. (“SIHM™) Bahramn 99.9% 99,9%  Inveshnent

Safir International Hotel and Resort Management Uniied Arab Hote) contract

L.L.C (“SIHM Dubai”) Emirates 100% 100% management

Jadi Catering Company W.L.L. * Qatar - J00%  Catering services

Safir Support Services Company K.S.C. (Closed) Kuwait 99.7% 99.7%  Manpower supply
Pastry and bakery

Ramo Trading Company W.L.L. (Held through manufacturing and

SCC) Kuowail 99.9% 89.9%  rading

* During the year ended 3t December 2018, the Parem Company liquidated the vnderlying subsidiary. The
resultant Joss from this transaction amounted to KD 4,314 which was recorded in profit or loss for the year then
ended. Further, the Group derecagnised Lhe related non-contralling interests of KD 32,590.

b} Associates

Ser out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December:

Country of % equiry interest
Name incorporation 2018 2017 Principal activities

Travel and tourism
Abu Nawas for Tourism and Services Tunisia 50% 50% related services.




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment
securities that have been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD), which is also the functional currency
of the Parent Company.

The consolidated fmancial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Finaneial
Reporting Standards (JFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB).

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group applied, for the first time, certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annuval periods
beginning on or after | January 2018. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these new
accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have ag impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or
amendments that have been issved, but are not yet effective.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremeny for anoual

perinds beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.

The Group applied IFRS 9 prospectively, with an jnitial application date of ) January 2018, The Group has no
restated the comparative information, which continues Lo be reported under JAS 39. Differences arising from the
adoption of JFRS 9 have been recognised directly in retained earnings and other components of equity.

a) Classificetion and measurement

Under IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost, or
fair value through OCI. The classification is based on two criteria: the Group’s business model for managing the
assets; and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent '50lely payments of pringipal and interest’
on the principal amount outstanding (the ‘SPPI criterion').

The assessment of the Group's business model was made as of the date of mitial application, 1 January 2018. The
assessmert of whethey contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest
was made based on the facts and circemstances as at the initial re¢ognition of the assets.

The following are the changes in the classification of the Group’s financia) assets:

» Accounts receivable classified as ‘Loans and receivables’ under 1AS 39 are held to collect contractual cash
flows and give rise o cash {lows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are classified
and mcasured as ‘Debt instrumeants at amortised cost’ beginning | Janvary 2018,

» Equity securilies that the Group intends to hold for the long term for strategic purposes have been irrevocably
designated at the date of initial wpplication as measured at FVOCLE. Unlike IAS 39, the accumulated fair value
reserve related (o these investments will never be reclassified to profir or loss.

» Equity securities that the Group designated as at FVTPL under JAS 39 because they were managed on a fair
value basis and thejr performance was monitored on this basis have been classified as mandatorily measured
at FVTPL under IFRS 9 beginning 1 Janvary 2018.

The Group has not Jdesignated any financial liabilities as at [air value through profit or loss. There are no changes
in classification and measurement for the Group’s financtal liabilities.

The JFRS 9 impact of required or elected reclassifications as at 1 January 2018 is disclosed in Noté 3.
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P BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

1F¥RS 9 - Financiol Instruments (continued)

b) Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in 1AS 39 with an ‘Expected Credil Loss” (ECL) model. The new
impairment model applies 1o financial assets measured at amontised cost, contract assets and debt investments al
FVOCI, but not to investments in equily instruments. JFRS S requires the Group to recognise an allowance for
ECLs for all other debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and contract assets.

The Group's accounting policies for impairmnent of financial assets i1s explained in Note 2.4. The quantitative
impact of adoption of IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is disclosed in Note 13.

c) Hedge accounting
At the date of initial application, the Group had no existing hedging relationships and therefore the new general

hedge accounting mode} in IFRS 9 hag no jirspact on the Group.

I¥RS 15 - Revenue from Coniracts with Customers
The Gronp has adopted TFRS 15 Revenve from Conmacts with Customers with effect from | Janvary 20/ 8 using
a modified retrospective method of adoption by not restating the comparative information.

IFRS 15 supersedes 1AS 11 Consiruction Conrracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it applies,
with limited exceptions, 1o all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. JFRS 13 establishes a five-step
mode} to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revepue be recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration Io which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
Or services 10 a customer.

IFRS 15 requires entities ta exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies
the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a2 contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
Tn addition, the standard requires relevant disclosures.

IFRS )5 did not have a significant impact on the Group’s accounting policies as revenue streamns mainly comprise
of sale of goods, rental income, management fees and commission income.

23 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yel effective, up to the date of jssvance of the Group's
consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicabte,
whett they become cffective.

IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SI1C-27 Evaluating the Substonce of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. TFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of Jeases and reqguires lessees 10.account for all leases under 2 single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for finance leases under JAS 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for Jessees
- leases of 'low-value® assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.¢., leases with a lease term of 12
months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a Jessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(3.e., the lease liability) and an assect representing the right 10 use the underlying asset during the lease term {i.e.,
the right-of-use asset), Lessees will be required 10 separately recognise the interest expense on the lease Jiability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., @ change
in the [ease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments). The [essee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease Jiability as an
adjustment 1o the nght-of-use asset.

Lessor aceounting under IFRS 16 js substantially unchanged from today's accounting under JAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in JAS 17 and distinguish between two
types of leases: operating and finance leases.

tFRS 16, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, requires lessecs and lessors
to make more cxtensive disclosures than under 1AS 17.

The Group is currently agsessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to adept the new standard on the required
cffective date.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial staternents comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31

December 2018. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through jts power over the invesiee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability 1o direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee.

» The ability to usé its power over the investee to atfect its retums

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in controf. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumnstances in assessing whether 5t has power over an investee, including:

v The contractoal arrangement with the other vote holders of the invastee
> Righis anising from other contractual arrangements
» The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-asscsses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicaté that there are
changes 1o one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary bégins when the Group
oblains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control 6f the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the congclidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains contro] untj) the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and Yo the non-controlling interests, even if this results 1n the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's aceounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, withont a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
Yransaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of eguity while any resultant gain or Joss is recognised in consolidared
statement of profit or loss, Any invesiment retained is recognised at fair value.

Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair valve, and he amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-conwolling interests in the acquirec at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s idemtifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a busincss, it assesses the financial assets 2nd liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with thé¢ contractual terms, economic circumnstances and pertinent
conditions as ai the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquirse,

Contingent consideration, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair vajue art the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as equicy is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accourted for
within equity. Contingent consideration classjfied as an asset or liability thar js a financial instrument and within
the scope of IFRS 9 Financial nstrumenis, is measured at fair valve with the changes in fair valuc recognised in
the profit or foss in accordance with TFRS 9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9
is measured al fair valuc al each reparting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and acquisition of non-controlling interests (continuzd)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggrepate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
all of the labilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment stll results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that upit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operdtion
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially me&asured at its fair value, Subsequently, it
is measured al the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for
provisions in 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or the amount initially recognised
Jess (when appropriate) cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue
recogntion.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group bas significant influence. Significant influence js the power to
participate in the {inancial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but i5 not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s investment in its associate Is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity methed, the
Investment in an associate is iniially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the inveszment is adjusted to
recogrise changes in the Group's share of net agsets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill retating
to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change
in OCI1 of those investees js presented as pant of the Group’s OC). In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the staterment of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the assocjate,

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the profit or loss and
represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests io the subsidiaries of the associate.

Afier application of ihe equity methaod, the Group delermines whether it is pecessary to recognise an impairment
loss oy its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether ihere is objective
evidence that the invéstment in the associate is impaired. 1 there is such evidence, the Group calculates the arnount
of impatrment as the difference berween the recoverable amount of the associgte and its carrying value, and then
recognises the toss as ‘Share of results of an associate’ in the profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, ihe Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on fiand, non-restricled cash at
banks and short-term deposits that are readily convenible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of chanpes in value, with original manuriti¢s of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidaled statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and sbort-
lerm deposits, as defined above. as they ure considered an integral pan of the Group's cash management.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments
In the current period the Group has adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. See Note 3 for an explanation of the

impact. Comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2017 have not been restated. Therefore, financial
instrumients in the comparative period are still accounted for in accordance with 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

a) Recognition and initlal measuremeni

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group beconies a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financiat liabihiry is
jnitially measured at fair value plug, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are direetly attributable to its
acquisition or jssue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price,

b) Classification and subsequent measuremen!

Financial assets - Policy gffective from | January 2018 (TFRS 9)

On initial recognition, & financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI - deby mvestment;
FVOCI} - equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition
unless the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL: :

» it is held within a business mode] whose objective is to hold assets to collect contracrval cash flows; and
» its coniractual terms give rise op specified dates to cash flows that are splely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount ouistanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

» it is held within 2 business mode¢] whose objective is achieved by both coliecting contracrual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

» ils contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows (hat are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principa) amount outstanding,.

On initia) recognition of an equity iovestment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably clect to
present subsequent chapges in the investment’s fair value in OCl This eléction is made on an
investment-by-investment basjs.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC! as deseribed above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group rmay irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirernents to be measuvred at amonised cost, at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

b) Classification and subsequent measurement (continned)

Financial assets — Business model assessment: Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way (he business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
wlether management's strategy focuses on carning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the-portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;
the risks that affect the performance of the business roode) (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

> how managers of the business are compensated ~ e.g. whetber compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows cotlected; and

» the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity. Transfers of financial assets ta third parties in transactions that do not
qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, covsistent with the Group’s continuing
recogpition of the assels.

Financial assets that are beld for trading or are managed and whase performance is evaluated on a Fair velue basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financtal assets ~ Assessment wherher contracinal cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:
Policy applicable from ] January 2018

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘prineipal® is defined as the fair value of the financial assel on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the {ime value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g liquidity risk and adminjstrative costs), as well as a proft margin.

In assessing whether the contracnial cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers
the contractual terms of the instrurnent. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a conrachval
term that could change the timing or amount of contractur] cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms thal may adjust the contractual covpon rate, including variable-rate féatures;

prepayment ang extension features; and

terms that 13mit the Group’s claim to cash llows from speci(ied assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

¥y vV g 9

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for eaerly termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a discount or premium (o its coniractual par amount, a feature that permils or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but onpaid)
coniractual interest (which may also include reasonable additionsl compensation for early termination) is treated
as consijstent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recoghition.

L7
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continned)
b) Classification and subsequent sneasurement (continued)

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and Ipsses: Policy applicable from I January 2018

These assets are subsequeritly measured at fair value. Net gains and
Josses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

» Fmancial assets at FVTPL

Thiese assets are subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the
effective inteyest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
fiopairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
Josses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or Joss.

» Financial assels at amortised cost

» Debt investments at FVOC) These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or [oss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated jn OC] are reclassified to profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently rpeasured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or Joss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and Josses are recognised in OCJ and are naver reclassified to
profit or loss.

> Equity mvestments at FVOC)

Financial assets — Policy applicable before ] January 2018
» Fipancjal assets al fair wvalue Measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest or

through profit or loss dividend income, were recognised in profit or loss,
b Held-io~-maturity financial assets Measured at amortised cost vsing the effective interest method.
b Loans and receivables Measured at amontised cost using the effeclive interest method.

» Available-for-sale financial assets Measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment
(AFS) losses, interest income and foreign currency differences on debt
instruments, were recognised in OC] and accumulated in the fair
value reserve. When these assets were derecognised, the gain or loss

accumulated in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.

Finaucial liabilities ~ Classification, subsequeni measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classificd, at inlifal recognition, as financtal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging ingtrumeénts in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised inijtially at fair value and, in the case of }oans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable 1ransaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable and accruals.

c)  Derecognifion

Financinl assers

The Group derecognises 2 financial asset when the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the financial assa
expire, or it transfers the rights ta receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither mansters nor
retains substantia)ly all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

¢)  Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
Jiability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference berween the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration peid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

d)  Offsetting

Finantial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the riet amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amovnts and it
intends either to sertle thern on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets - Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Financial instrumenis and contract assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on:

» financial assets measured at amortised cost;
» debt investments measured at FVOC); and
> confract assets.

Equiry investments are not subject to ECLs.

The Group measures loss alloswances at an amount equal to Jifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are
measured at 12-month ECLs:

» debr securities that are determined ta have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
» other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (j.e. the risk of defavit oceurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Group applics a three stage approach to measure the expected credis loss as follows:

Stage 1: 12 months ECL
For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the portion of
the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events necurring within next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL ~ not credit impaired
For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but tyat are
not credit impaired, a ifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL ~credit impaired

Financial assels are assessed as credit impaired when one or more even(s that have a dewrimental impact on the
estimaled furure cash Nows of that asset have occurred. As this uses the same criteria as under [AS 39, the Group’s
methodology {or specific provisions remains largely unchanged.

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, Ihe Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a Joss allowance based on liferime ECLs at each reporting dale.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its histarical credit loss experience, adjvsted for
forward-looking factors specific 1o the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contraciual payments are 90 days past due. However. in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset 10 be in defaull when intemal or external information
indicates thai the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credil enhancements held by the Group. A financia) asset is written oft when there is no rcasonable cxpeciation
of recovering the caniractual cash flows.,

19
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2 BAS]S OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets - Policy applicable before ] January 2018

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any ohjective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may inclade
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, defauit or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Avdilable-for-sale finoncial assets
For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at each réporting date whether there is objective evidence

that an investinent or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets, objective evidence would incjude
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity investment below its cost. ‘Signiftcant’ is evaluated
against the origina) cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair valve has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumutative loss measured as the difference
benween the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on those available-for-sale
financial assets previously recognised in the statement of profit & loss, is removed from OCI and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity invesiments are nol reversed throvgh the statement pf
profit or loss; increase in their fair value afier impairment is recognised directly in OCL

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent ro which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost

In the case of debt tustruments classified as avajlable-for-sale inancizal assets, impairment is assessed based on the
same cniteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the curreat fair value, less any
fimpairment lass on that investment previously recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Revenue recognition
Revenve recognition from sale of goods is expected to occur at a point in time when conmrol of the goods are

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Sule of poods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when controt of the asset is transferred to the customer,

generally on delivery of the goods.

Management fees
Fees earned for the provision of services over 2 period of time are accrued over that period.

Revenue from rendering of services
Revenue from rendering services is recognised when the related services are provided.

Remal income
The Group is the lessor in certain operating leases. Rental income arising from operating leases is accountéd for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Taxes

Kuwait Foundation for the Advuncement of Sciences [KFAS)

The contribution to KFAS is calculated al 1% of the profit for {he year aitributable to the Parent Company in
accordance with the modified calculation based on the Foundation's Board of Directors’ resolution, which states
that income from associates and subsidiaries, Board of Directors’ remuneration, (ransfer 10 statutory reserve should
be excluded trom profit for the year when determining the contribution,

National Labour Support Tax
NLST is calculated a1 2.5% of the profit for the year auribuiable to the Parent Company in accordance with Law

No. 19 ot'2000 and the Ministry of Finance resolotions No. 24 ol 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxes (continved)

Zokut
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit for the year attributable to Parent Company in accordance

with the Ministry of Finance resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007,

Taxation on overseas subsidiary
Income tax on overseas subsidiary represents tax for operatians im Egypt, Syria and Lebanon and is calculated in
accordance with the applicable tax law of these countries.

Income tax assets and liabilities for the current year are measuored at the amount expected to be recovered from ar
paid (o the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are esacted
or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in \he countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement

at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangerent is dependent on the
vse of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the assét or assets, even if that right is
not implicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a sraight-

line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of Jand lease rights are classified
as operating leases. Initial direct costs incwTed in negotiating an operating lease are added o the carrying amount
of the land lease rights and recognised over the lease term, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
vl which they are earmned.

Foreign currencies
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwait Dinars, which is the Parent Company’s functional and

presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional cwrrency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that fimetionaj currency.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in KD, which is also the Parent Company's functional
currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that funcrional currency. The Group uses the direct method of
consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or foss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects
the amount that arises from using rhis method.

Transactions and balances
Transactivns in foreign currgncies are initially recorded by the Group’s euntities a1 their respective functional
cerrency spot rates at ihe date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differcnces arising on settlement or translation of manetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items thot are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates al 1he dates of the initial ransactians. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translaled using the exchange rates ai the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translaion of non-monetary items measured at fair value i3 treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on iteins whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rale to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or pan
of it) on the deracagnition of a non-monetary asset or nosi-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the
date of 1he transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary assct or non-monetary
hiability arising from the advance consideration. 1f there are multiple payments or receipls in advance, ihe Group
determines (he trunsaction dale for cach payment or receipt of advance consideration.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Group companies

On consalidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are wanslated into Kuwaiti Dinar at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign
operation is reclassified in profii or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reportg date.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or any accumulated impairment

losses, if any.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the esrimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings )0 to 25 years
Machinery, equipment and furniture 3 to 15 years
Leasehold improvement and decorations 4 to ]0 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 8 years

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if atry.

Expenditure incurred (o replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for separately
is capitalised and the carryiog amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other sybsequent
expenditure is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of property and
equipment. All other expenditure js recognised as the expense is incuwred.

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposat or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any zain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calcutated as ihe difference benween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
ts included statement of profit or Joss when the asset ts derecogpised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end snd
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumnlated impairment losses.

The uscful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefnite.

Jntangible assets with finite Jives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impatrment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amontisation method for an intangible asset with a Yinite useful life are reviewed at least al1he end of cach reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered 10 modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treatcd
as changes in accounmting cstimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Imangible assety with indefinitc useful lives are not amartised, bul are tested for impairment annually, cither
tndividually or a1 the CGU level. The assessrnent of indefinite life is reviewed annually to detcrmine whether the
indefinite lifc continues to be suppornable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis,

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient oblains control) or when no fukure
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel) is included
in the statement of profi or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each praduct to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

» Raw materials: purchase cost on weighted average basis

» Finished goods: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the
normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less-estimated costs necessary
to make sale.

Imrpairment of non-financis] assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual jmpafrment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that ars targely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amonnt, the asset is considerad impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vafue using 2 pre-tax
discount rate that roflects current market agsessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset.
In determining fair value Jess costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fatr
value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgers and forecast calculations, which are prepared
scparately for gach of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
caleulations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growih rate is caleulated and applied to project
furure cash flows afler the fifth year.

An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is an indication 1hat previously recognised impaturmem
losses may no longer exijst or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impajrment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal {s limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed jts recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the staiernent of profit or loss unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation incregse.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at the reporting date at the CGU
jevel, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ansfer a liability in an orderty ransaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumplion thal
the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

> Inthe principal marker for the asset or liability, or
b In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagepus market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured vsing the assumptions that market panicipants would use when
pricing the asset or Yiability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value mcasurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 10 gencrate
cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and hest use or by selling il to another market participant that
would vse the asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

The Parent Company's own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or Joss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount
and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in treasury share reserve to the extent of the credit balance i that
account. Any excess losses are charged to retained eamnings then to the reserves. No cash dividends are paid on
these shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the
average cost per share withour affecting the total cost of weasury shares.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits for its all employees in accordance with Kowait Labour Law. The
entitlement to these benefits is based vpon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the
completion of a minimum service penod. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of

employment.

With respect to national employees, the Group also makes contrbutions to the Public Institution for Social Secunty
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group's obligations are limited to these contibutions,
which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or copstructive) as result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required o settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but are disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Current versus non-current classificatfon
The Group presents assets and liabilities in consolidated statement of financial position based on current/non-
current ¢classification. An asset js classified as current when it is;

» Expected lo be realised or intended (o be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

> Held primarily for Lhe purpose of trading;

»  Expected to be realised within (welve months afier the reporting period; or

»  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricied from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months afier the reporting period.
The Group classifies all other assets as non~current.
A lability is current when:

Tt is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3t is due ta be serled within twelve months afier the reponing period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least rwelve months after the

reporting perjad.

YyYvyvuvyv

The Group classifies al) other }iabilities as non-cwTent,
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3 IFRS 9 —IMPACT OF ADOPTION

The adoption of the ECL requirements of IFRS 9 resulted in an increase in impairment allowances of the Group’s
trade receivables. The increase in allowance resulted in adjustrnent o retained earmings as follows:

Rerained
earnings
KD
Closing balance under 1AS 39 as at 31 December 2017 33,824
Impact on recognition of ECL on accounts receivable:
ECL under IFRS 9 for trade receivables at amortised cost (272,695)
Opening balance under IFRS 9 on date of initial application of | January 2018 (238,861)

The following table shows reconciliation of original measurement categones and carying value in accordance
with 1AS 39 and the new measurement caggories under IFRS 9 for the Group’s financial assets as at 1 January
2018:

Original Original carrying New carrying
classification New classification  amount under IAS Transiton omount under
under 1AS 39 under IFRS 9 39 adjustments IFRS 9
KD KD KD
Loans and
Cash and cash equivalents receivables Amortised cost 970,002 - 570,002
‘Trade reccivables (excluding Loans and
prepayments) receivables Amonised cosl 1,335,186 (272,695) 1,062,49)
Investment securities AFS FVOCI 97,434 - 97,434
Invesoment seeurities FVTPL FVTPL 71,400 - 71,400
Total Mnpneial assats 2,474,022 {272,695) 2.201,327
B ———— _ -

Adoption of [FRS 9 did not result in any change in classification ot neasurement of financial ligbilities

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements in conformiry with IFRS requires management
o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and ihe disclosure aof contingent assets and fiabilities. Uncernainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in suicomes that require a aatenial adjustment (o the carrying
amount of assels or liabihities affected in future periods.

Judgements

1n the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has madc the foflowing judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect in the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Classification of financlnl assets

Policy effective from 1 January 2018 (IFRS 9)

The Group determines the classilication of financial assets based on the assessment of the business model withjn
which the assets are held and asscssment of whether the contractual terms of Lhe financial assel are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Refer Note 2.4 classification of [inancial assets for
more information.

Policy effective before | January 2018 (14S 39)

On acquisition of financial assets management decides whether it should be classified as (inancial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or financial assets aveilable for sale. Further, determining
whether or not the market for a quoted financial instrument js active requires judgement based on assessment of
the volume/market conditions and availability of ready and reguolar quotes.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Judgements
Classification of financial assets (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumnstances and assumptiens about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of
the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumplions when they occur,

Impairment of associates

Investment in associates are accowited for under the equity method of accounting for associates, whereby these
investments are initially stated-at cost, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group's
share of the net assets of the associates Jess any impairment losses. The Group is required to assess, at each
reporting date, whether there are indications of impairment. If such indications exist, the management estimates
the recoverable amount of the associate in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The
identification of impairment indicators and determination of the recovérable amounts require management to make
significant judgements, estimates and assumptions.

Impalrment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

The Group tests whether an intangible asset with an indefinite usefu) live (key money) has suffered any iropairment
on an annual basis. For the 2018 and 2017 reporting period, the recoverable amount of the cash generating units
(CGUs) was détermined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year périod. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolaied using the estimated growth raies. These growth rates are
consistent with forecasts specific to the jndusiry in which each CGU operates.

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

Effective before 1 Jarmuary 2018 (14S 39)

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade receivables is made when collection of the full amount js no longer
probable. For individually significani amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which
are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according
to the length of time past due, based on historica) recovery rales.

Effective fram 1 January 2018 (IFRS 9)

The Group assesses on 2 forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt
instruments carried at amorised cost. For rade receivables and coniract assets, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit nsk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on Jiferime ECL at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environsment. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Fair value measuremerit

Managernent uses valvation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (Where active market
quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions cansistent with how narke(
participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible
but this is not always available. In that case, management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values
may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting dale

Impairment of inveniorles

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realhisable value. When invenlories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on
an individuzl basis. Amounts which are not indjvidually significant, but which are old or obsolcte, are assessed
collectively and a provjsion applied according 1o the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence.

Useful lives of deprecinbie nssets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assels a1 each reposting dale, based on the
expected unliny of 1he assets. Uncertaintics in these estimates relate (o technologicat obsolescence that may change
the uutlity of certain sgftware and 1T equipment.
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As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

5 REVENUE AND COST OF REVENUE

R) Revenue from contract with customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:

Type of goods or service
Revenue from rendering of services
Sale of poods

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at 2 point in time
Services transferred over time

Type of goods or service
Revenue from rendering of services
Sale of goods

Thrning of revenue recognition
Goods trangferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

b) Cost of sales

Material costs

Staff costs

Operating lease rental expenses
Depreciation (Note 9)

Other costs

) OTHER INCOME

Loss on sale of items of property and equipment

Interest income
Miscellaneous income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Catering Bakeyy products Tota!
KD KD XD
4,461,252 - 4,461,252

- 1,445229 1,445,229
4,461,252 1,445,229 5,906,481
- 1,445,229 1,445,229
4,461,252 - 4,461,252
4,461,252 1,445,229 5,906,481

For the year ended 3] December 2017

Catering Bakery products Toral
KD KD KD
4,609,250 - 4,609,250

- 1,040,314 1,940,314
4,609,250 1,940,314 6,549,564
- 1,940,314 1,940,314
4,609.250 - 4,609,250
4,609,250 1,940,314 6,540,564
2018 2017
XD KD
1,575,719 1,796,231
3,411,680 3,424,788
357,910 415,798
171,933 200,394
675,809 704,875
6,193,051 6,542,088
2018 2017
KD KD
(67,507) (8,917)
4,004 4,986
133,440 143,236
69,937 139,305
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7 (LOSS) / PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
2018 2017
XD KD
Included in cost of sales
Staff costs 3,411,680 3,424,786
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1,575,719 1,796,231
Rental expenses-operating Jeases 357,910 415,798
Depreciation 171,933 200,354
5,517,242 5,837,209
Included in administrative expenses
Staff costs 576,970 577,235
Depreciation 213,037 234,083
790,007 8J1,318

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Parent Compdny by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is
caleunlated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on conversiop of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. As
there are no dilutive instruments ountstanding, basic and diluted earnings per share are jdentical.

2018 2017
{Loss) / profit for the year atributable to equity holders of the Parent
Company (KD) (363,582) 6,930
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (shares) * 56,433,300 56,433,300
Basic and diluted EPS (fils) (6.4) 0.1

' The weighted aversge number of shares 18kes in(o accouni the weighted average effect of changes in Yeaswry shares during the year,

There have been no other wansactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting,
date and the date of avthorisation of these consolidated financial statements.
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Kuwait Hotels Company E.5.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

1] INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cosl;

At 1 January 2008
Wnteg-ofl

At 31 December 2003
Amoriisption and impairment:

Al January 2008

At 3] December 2018

Mel hook value:
At 31 December 2008

Caost:
At 1 Jamuary 20017
Disposal
At 3] Decermber 2017
Amortisation and impaiment:
Al 1 January 2017
Al 31 Decernber 2017

Met ook value:
Al 3 Decamber 2007

Lond lease
et from
BOVEFImER] Key money Total
KD KD KD
304,000 099 ROE [.313,808
. {77,251} (77,251}
314,000 672,557 1,216,557
| 75 080 | 75,680
i 175,680 175,680
314,040 46,877 1,060,877
Land feqse
Fighis from
BoverrmReil Ky atnney Tirranl
KD Kb KD
EY LNl I, 056 B08 1,370,508
- (57,040 (57,0000
314,000 000 808 1,313,808
- V75 680 174,680
- 175,680 175,680
30,000 e ek 138,128

(=

-3

Key moncy represents amounts paid for securing operating leases for the Group's retail patlers.

— —

The recoversble amount has been determined based on value-in-use cuboulations using cash fow prajeciions from

financial budgets approved by management covering a

five-year period based on the historical pater of sales

volumes and revenue growth. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 10.67% (2017: 12%] and cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapobated using a 1% growth rate (2017: 1%), which does not exceed the

long term average growth rare of the State of Kuwait.

As a result of the analysis, the recoverable amount of the entire CGL based on value in ose as at 31 December
201§ was estimated to be KD 1,592,732 (2017: KD |, 614,709), hence excecding the carrying value by
KD B45.855 of that date (2017: KD 790,581} Accordingly, management did not jdentify an impairment loss

during the yesr ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Key assumptions used in value in use caleulations and sensitivity to changes i assumplions

#  Revepue growth;
b Discound rvee; and

b Projected growth rate used to extrapolae cash Nows beyond the budget period.

Fevenpy growdli;

Revenue growth is bised on average values achicved n the two years preceding Lhe stan of the budgel peried.
These are increased over the budaet period for anticipated market conditions,




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Discount rate.

Discount raté is calculated by using the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). The inputs to the calcuiation
of the discount rate reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the CGU
and the country of the CGU.

Projected growth rate:
Assumptions are based on industry research. The Group has used conservative projecied growth rate considering
CQU’s current performance under Kuwair competitive market.

Sensirvity to changes in assumpltions

With respect to management's assessment of value in use of the cash generating unit, management believes that
no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to
materially exceed jts recaverable amount.

The above sensitivity analyses are bssed on a change in an assumption while holding all other assurpptions
constant Tn practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated

11 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2018 2017
KD KD
New classificarion under JFRS 9
Fintancial assets af falr value through other comprehensive income:
Unquoted equity securities 50,235 -
50,235 -
Financial assets al fair value profit or loss:
Unquoted equity securities 71,400
71,400 -
131,635 -
Orlginal classification under IAS 39
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets
Unquoled equity securities - 63,235
- 93.235
Financial assels designated ut fair value thraugh profit vr loss:
Unquoted equity securities - 71,400
- 71,400
- 164,635

At 31 December 2017, centain equily instruments amounting to KD 81,534 that do not have a quoted price n
active market and whose {air value cannoft be measured reliably were accovnted at cost (in accordance with 1AS
39). These instruments have been measured at fair value at the date of imtial application of IFRS 9. Any difference
between the previous carrying amount and the fair value is recognised in the opening retained earnings or OCI, as
appropriate.

The Group’s investment in unquoted equity securities was previously accounted at cost less impairment (in
accordance with 1AS 39). Al 31 December 2017, the management had carried out a detailed review of these
investments, to assess whether there js objective evidence that these investments were impaired. As a result, the
Group recorded an impairment foss amounting to KD 30,869 during the year then ended.

The hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by valuation technigues is
presented in Note 24,




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

12 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2018 2017
KD KD
Trade receivables 2,309,783 2,054,211
Less: Allowance for expected credin losses (20§ 7: provision for Unpairment of
rade receivables) (976,661) (719,029)
1,333,122 1,335,186
Prepayments and other receivables 541,556 557,425
1,874,678 t,892,611}

The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair valye.

Note 23.] includes disclosures relating to the credit risk exposures and on analysis relating to the allowance for
expected credit losses on the Group's rade receivables. Other classes within accounts receivable and prepayments
do not contam iropaired assets.

The maximurn exposure to credit risk at the reparting date is the carrying velué of each class of receivables mentioned
above.

Movements in the aljowance for expected credit Josses/ impairment during the years endad 31 December are as
follows:

2018 2017

KD KD
At | January 719,025 759,318
Opening loss allowance as at | January 20} 8- calculated under TFRS 9 (Note 2.3) 272,693 -
Opening provision for impairment of wade recejvables 991,720 759,318
Allowance faor expected credit losses - 17,630
Written ofY during the year (15,059) (57,923)
At 31 December 976,661 719,025

The above comparative for impairment provisions refers 0 TAS 39 measurement basis which applied on incurred
loss model, whereas the current year applies IFRS 9 which is on expected loss model.

13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
XD Kb
Cash at banks and on hand 726,642 970,002
Shart-term deposits maturing within three months 250,000 -
976,642 970,002

Short-term deposits are made for a period of three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and eam interest at an effective interest rate of 2.625% (2017: Nil) per amum.
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and 1ts Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

14 SHARE CAPITAL

Number of sharex Authorised, issued and fully paid
2018 2017 2018 2017
XD KD
Shares of 100 fils each (paid in cash) 57,750,000 57,750,000 5,775,000 5,775,000

—_—————

15 RESERVES

(a) Starutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Arficles
of Association, a minimum of 10% of the profit for the year betore tax and board of directors’ remuneration shal
be transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of the Parent Company's board of directors.

The annva) general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve 10 discontinue such transfer when the reserve
exceeds 50% of the issved share capita). The reserve may only be used to ofYfset losses or enable the payment of
a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital in years when prafit is not sufficient for the payment of such dividend
due to absence of distributable reserves. Any amounts deducted from the reserve shall be refunded when the profits
in the following years suffice, unless such reserve exceeds S0% of the issued share capital.

b) Voluntary reserve

In accordance with the Companies' Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandun of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, a maximum of (0% of the profit for the year before tax and board of directors’ remuneration is
required to be mansferred to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be discontinued by a resolution of
the shareholders® general assembly upon a recommendation by the Board of Directors. There are no restrictions
on the distribution of this reserve.

16 TREASURY SHARES

2018 2017

XD KD
Number of shares 1,316,700 1,316,700
Percentage of issued shares 2.28% 2.28%
Cost (KD) 223,952 223,952
Market value (“*KD") 17127 323,908

Reserves equivalent (o the cost of the treasury shares held are not avaifable for distribution during the holding
period of such shares as per CMA guidelines.

17 OTHER RESERVE
Other reserve represents the effect of changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without logs of control.
18 EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Movement in the provision reccgnised in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

2018 2017
KD KD
At 1 January 878,052 957,156
Charge for the year 165,436 177,538
Benefits paid during the year (252,750) (256,642)
Al 31 December 790,738 878,052




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

2018 2017
KD KD
Trade accounts payables 747,981 522,882
Uneamed revenue 514,060 473,736
Accruals and other liabilities _ 834,833 887,463
2,096,852 1,884,081

Terms and conditions of the above finarncial liabilities are:
»  Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 day terms.
»  Other payables are nou-interest bearing and have average teym of six months

For explanation on the Group's liquidity risk management process, refer to Note 23,

20 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into three main business segments based on intérnal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker:

» Hote]l Management: Owning, operating and managing of hotels

> Catering and manpower supply services: Providing catering and manpower supply services to governmentai
and non-governmental institutions.

» Information technology services: Information technology administrative support

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocetion and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on return on
investments.

L
w
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

21 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

21.1 Commitments

The Group has entered into commercial leases for cernain premises and a property rented from the Govemment of
Kuwait. These leases have an average life of between one and five years. There are no restrictions placed upon
the Group be entering into these leases.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

2018 2017
KD KD
Within one year 257,708 383,352
After one year but not more than five years 722,497 681,220
1,020,205 1,064,572

21.2 Contingent liabllities

At the reporting date, the Group has provided performance bank guarantees to jts cusiomers amounting 1o
KD 1,486,539 (2017: KD 1,868,600). It is anticipated that no material ljabilities wil} arise.

22 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Related panies represent associates, major shareholders, directors and key menagement personnel of the Group and
entities conwolled, jointly controlled or significantly snfluenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of thes2

transactions are approved by the Parent Comnpany’s management.

Trapsactions with related parties included ip the consolidatzd statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Major Otler
Shareholder affiliates 2018 2017
KD XD KD KD
Management fees 322,603 39,869 362,472 335,090
Cost of saleg (91,865) - (91,865) -
Administrative expenses - (86,993) (86,993) {49,960)

Investment in ¢quity securities amounting to KD 88,900 (2017: XD 86,900) are managed by a related party.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel compriseé of the Board of Directors and key member of the management having authority
and responsibifity for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. The aggregate valve of
transactions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel were as follows:

Tronsaction value for the year

Balonce outstanding os at 31

ended 3] December Deceniber
2018 2017 2018 2017
KD XD KD XD
Salaries and short-tenn employee benefits 189,456 215,076 36,256 46,504
End of services benchis 18,216 20,682 190,330 172,347
207,672 235,758 226,586 218,851
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk is inherent in he Group's activities but it is managed through a proccss of ougoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other cantrols. This process of risk management is critical
to the Group's continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures
relating to his or her responsibilities. Thé Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk which is
further sub-divided into interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. The Group's policy is to
moniter those busmess risks through the Group’s strategic planning process.

The Group’s principal financial liabiliies comprise of accounts payable and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has vartous financial assets such as
accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents which are directly from s operations.

The management of the Parent Company is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk strategy. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarnised below:

23.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party wij) not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to
financial loss. Financial assets subject to credit risk consist principally of bank balances, short term deposits and
accounts receivable.

Risk concentration of maximum exposure 1o credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financia) assets as
follows:

2018 2017

KD XD
Bank balances and shori-terrn deposits 975,452 969,002
Trade receivables 1,333,122 1,335,186
2,308,574 2,304,188

Cash and short term deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial instirutions s limited because the counterparties are reputable
financial institutions with appropriate credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Further, the
principal amounts of deposits in local banks (including saving accounts and current accounts) are guaranteed by the
Central Bank of Kuwait in accordance with Law No. 30 of 2008 Concerning Guarantee of Deposits at Local Banks
in the State of Kuwait which came into effect on 3 November 2808.

Impairment on cash and short term deposits has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures, The Group considers that its cash and short term deposits have [ow credit sk based
on the extemal credit ratings of the counterparties.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure 10 credit risk is intfluenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit misk of its customer base, including the default
risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. The Group limits its exposure to credit risk
from trade receivables by establishing a maximum payment period of three months for individual and corporate
customers respectively.

At 31 Deecember 2018, its five largest customers account for 63% (2017: 41%) of outstanding trade accounts
receivable at 3) December 2018,

Comparative information upder 14S 39

In the prior year, the impainment 6f trade receivables was assessed based on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to be uncollectible were writren off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The
other receivables were assessed collectively 1o deterrnine whether there was objective evidence that an impairment
had been icurred but not yet been idéntified. For these receivables the eslimated impairment Josses were recognised
in a separate provision for impairment. The Group considered that there was evidence of impairment if any of the
following indicators were present:

»  significanl financial difficuities of the debtor
»  probabilily that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
»  default or late payments (rnare than 270 days overdue).




Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 3] December 2018

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
{continucd)

23.1 Credis risk (continued)

Risk concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk (continued)

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised were wriften off against the provision when there
was no expeceation of recovering additional cash.

An analysis of the credit quality of trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired and the ageing of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Neijther past Past due but nol impaired
due nor
Totul impaired 1-90 days 91-180 days > J80 days
KD KD KD KD XD
2017 1,335,186 591,016 151,384 57,973 534,813

Impaired trade receivables at 31 December 2017 had a gros: canying amount of KD 2,054,211. At 31 December
2017, there was an impairment loss of KD 719,025 related to several customers that have indicated Lhat they are not
expecting 1o be able 10 pay their outstanding balances, mainly dud to economic circumstarices.

Expected credit loss assessment for trade recervobles as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018

The Group uses a provision marrix based on the Group’s historical observed default rates to measure the ECLs of
trade receivables from large number of customers including governmental agencies. The Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has mcreased significantly since imitial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 270 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Genernlly, trade receivables are written-off if past due for more than orie year and are not subject to enforcement
activity, The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporiing date is the carrying value of each class of financial
assels disclosed 11 Note 12. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure as at 31 Decernber 2018 and [ Yanvary 2018 (on
adoption 6f JFRS 9) on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Days past due
Neither past
dné nor
impaired 1-90 days  91-180 days  >180 days Toral
37 Decenmber 2018 KD KD KD KD KD
Expected credit loss rate - 4.6% 40% 84% 4228%
Estimated (otal gross
carrying amoung at
default 707,696 315,263 269,589 1,017,235 2,309,783
Expected credit loss - 14,544 108,205 853,912 976,661
Days past due
Current 1-90 days  9]-180 doys  >180 days Total
! January 20)8 KD KD KD KD KD
Expected credit loss rate - 8.76% 65% 62% 42.62%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at
default 591016 165,928 166,178 1,403,784 2,326,906
Expected credit Joss - 14,544 108,205 868,57) 991,720
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

23.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk js the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in ratsing funds to meer commitments associated
with Anancial instruments. To manage this risk, the Group periodically assesses the financial viability of
customers and invests in bank deposits that are readily realisable. The maturity profile is monitored by
management to ensure adequate )iquidity is maintained.

The Group limits its liquidity risk by ensuring bank facilities are available. The Group’s terms of sales reguire
amounts to be paid within 30 days of the date of sale. Trade payables are normally settled within 60 days of the
date of purchase.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of lhe Group’s financial liabilitics based on contractual
undiscounied payments:

Less than 3
months 3= 12 months Toral
KD KD KD
2018
Accoupts payable and accruals * 633,757 949,635 1,582,792
Total liabilities 633,157 949,635 1,582,792
Less than 3
months 3= 12 months Toral
KD KD KD
2017
Accounts payable and accruals * 562,399 847,946 1,410,345
Total Yiabilities 562,399 847,946 1,410,345

* Accounts payable and accruals excludes unearned revenue.

233 Market risk
Market nsk s the risk that the fair value or foture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market prices. Market prices comprise of interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, and aquiry price risk.

23.3.1 [Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest risk on its short-term loans which mature or reprice in the short-term, no Jonger
than twelve months, The effective interest rates are disclosed in Note 13. As a result, the Group is subject to
fimited axposure to interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market jnteress rates.

The following table demonstrates the sénsitivity of the statement in profit and loss (0 reasonably possible changes
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,

The sensitivity of thie steternent of profit or loss is the effcct of the assumed changes Sn interest rates on the Group's
profit for one year, based on the foating rate financial assets held at 3) December.

JIncrease/decrease  Effect on resulis for the

in basis poinis yenr
XD
2018
KD +/-100 2,500
2017
KD 4/-100 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

233 Market risk

23.3.2 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency disk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucruate

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk as
majority of its monetary assets and ljabilities are denominated in the fonctional currency of the Parent Company.

2333 Equity price risk
The Group’s equity investments are susceptible to markel price risk arising from uncenainties about future valués

of the mvestment securities.

The Group holds strategic equity investments in private entities, which complément the Group's operations.
Management believes that the exposure to market price risk from this activity is acceptable in the Group's
circumstances.

At the reporting date, the exposure to unquoted equity investments at fair value was KD 131,635. Sensitivity
analyses of these invastments have beev provided in Note 24

24 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financjal instruments for which fair value s recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy based on the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a3 whole, as follows:

» Level ): quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

> Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest Jevel inpul that is significant to the fair value
measurement is djrectly or indirectly observable

> Level 3: valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is sigaificant to the fair vatue

measurement 1s unobservable

Finoncial instruments:
Financial instruments comprise {inancial assets and financial )iabilities.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, the Group uses valuation techniques thst are appropriale
in the circurnstances and for which sufficient data are avsilable to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value with changes in fair vajue recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For other financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost, management assessed that the carrying
value is not significantly different from their fair values targely due to the short-term maturities of these
mnstruments.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by Jevel of the fair value
hierarchy:

Falr value measurement using

Qnoted prices Significamt Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inpurs inpuks
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
A1 31 December 2018 KD KD XD KD
Assels mensured at fair value:
Financial assets at foir value ihrough
profit or loss X
Unquoted equity securities - - - 71,400
. - - 71,400
Financial assels at fair value through
other comprehensive inconte
Unquoted equity securities - - 50,235 30,235
- - 50,235 50,235
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.5.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

4 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measuremen uslng
Quoted prices  Significani Significant
fn active Ofseriable wnobservable
mmarkets inputs inputs
[Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Tosal
At 31 December 2018 KD KD KD KD
Azsets measured ar foir value:
Finanelal assets of fair value through
profil or loss
Linqunted equity securities - - - TN A0
g ; - T1.400
Avallable-for-sale financial assels
Unquoted equity seeurities - - 93,135 93,235
- . 93,235 93215

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valeation of finapcinl agset:

The fair value of unlisted equity investment have been estimated using a market based valuation technique. The
Group determines comparable public companies (peers) based on indusiry, size and leverage and calculates an
appropriste trading multiple for the comperable company identified. The multiple Is then discounted for
considerations such as illiquidity and size differcnces between the comparable companies hased on company specific
facts and circumstances.

The significant unohservable inputs used in the fair value measorement categorised within Level 3 of ihe fair value
hierarchy, together with the quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2018 are as shown below:

Significant
Valwarfon unobservable Senairivirg of the fnput In
rechniques s DO Jfair vafue
Unquoted equity security Market DLOM * 25% T increase N“T’“]' in
mulriple ldl'rt ﬁl?.:nlirnl wionl .
h ecrease (increass
A fair value by KD 5,207

* Diseount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has deterrrined that marker participants
would take into account when pricing the investments.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of ilems categorised within Level 3

hetween the beaginning and the end of the reporting period:

Fimaneds! Financial
dERels i assers al
2018 FECT F¥TPL Tl
K KD KD
As st | Jamunry (restated) 03,233 71,400 164,635
Remncasirement recognised i OC) {43,000 - (43,000)
As al 31 December 20,235 T1,40M0 121,635
— L —_— —
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Kuwait Hotels Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

24 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCJAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values (continued)

Available-for- Financial

sale financial asselts ot
2017 assets FVTPL Toflal
As at ) January 124,104 71,400 195,504
Impairment loss (30,869) - (30,869)
As at 31 December 93,235 71,400 164,635

25 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise sbareholder value.

The Group rnanages jts capital strucrure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in econdmic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital o shareholder or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 33 December 2018 and 20) 7. Capital represents eguirty attmbutable to equity holders of the Parent
Company and is measured at KD 4,997,254 ag at 3) December 2018 (2017: KD 5,678,801).
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